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1. Name of Property_________________________

historic name ZUBER-JARRELL HOUSE 
other names/site number n/a

2. Location

street & number 810 Flat Shoals Ave. S.E. 
city, town Atlanta
county DeKalb code GA089 
state Georgia code GA zip code 30316

(N/A) not for publication

(N/A) vicinity of

3. Classification

Ownership of Property:

(X) private 
( ) public-local 
( ) public-state 
( ) public-federal

Category of Property:

(X) building(s) 
( ) district 
( ) site 
( ) structure 
( ) object

Number of Resources within Property:

buildings
sites
structures
objects
total

Contributing

1
0
0
0
1

Noncontributina

0
0
0
0
0

Contributing resources previously listed in the National Register: N/A
Name of previous listing: N/A
Name of related multiple property listing: N/A



4. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended, I hereby certify 
that this nomination meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the National Register of 
Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60. In my 
opinion, the property meets the National Register criteria. ( ) See continuation sheet.

Signature of certifying official Date

Mark R. Edwards
State Historic Preservation Officer

In my opinion, the property () meets () does not meet the National Register criteria. () See continuation sheet.

Signature of commenting or other official Date

State or Federal agency or bureau

5. National Park Service Certification

I, hereby, certify that this property is:

(v/entered in the National Register

() determined eligible for the National Register

() determined not eligible for the National Register

() removed from the National Register

() other, explain:

() see continuation sheet
Keeper of the National Register Date

ZUBER-JARRELL HOUSE 
DeKalb County, Georgia



6. Function or Use

Historic Functions:

DOMESTIC/single dwelling 

Current Functions:

DOMESTIC/single dwelling

7. Description

Architectural Classification:

LATE 19TH AND 20TH CENTURY REVIVALS/Neo-Classical Revival 

Materials:

foundation brick
walls wood
roof asphalt shingles
other N/A

Description of present and historic physical appearance:

SUMMARY DESCRIPTION:

The Zuber-Jarrell House is a two-story, frame, Neo-Classical Revival-style house with four Ionic 
columns on the front, two-story portico. Rounded-arch leaded glass windows flank the front entrance, 
and above these windows on the second floor are stained-glass port-hole windows. The house is not 
symmetrical, since the front porch wraps around the right side of the building. There is a bay window 
on the right side as well. On the left side is a porte-cochere. There are four carved brackets 
supporting a second story projection over the front doorway. The first floor interior opens onto a large 
foyer; at the far end of this room is a fireplace and sitting area. There is a large dining room to the 
right, and both a large parlor and a library to the left. The interior contains large, sliding double 
doors, hardwood floors, a massive, three-landing stairway, and stairwell opening into an area where 
there is a ceiling two floors high. There are other stained glass windows within the house. The 
second floor contains four bedrooms and a kitchen. The house retains most of its original materials. 
The grounds contain a large number of large oak trees, magnolias, two grape arbors, pecan and 
linden trees. There are no original outbuildings. The house is surrounded by streets on three sides; 
the fourth side is a wooded property. Both yards are fenced, the front with decorator's fence, the rear 
with a Cyclone fence. Changes to the house include the addition of an apartment in the basement in 
the 1950s, and in the attic, four rooms have been added. The house is located in East Atlanta, not 
far from a commercial area, but in an area that remains residential.
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The following description was prepared by the applicant:

The John William Zuber House, located on Flat Shoals Road S.E. approximately one half mile south 
from the intersection of Glenwood Avenue S.E. and Flat Shoals Road S.E., is a fine example of Neo­ 
classical Revival-style architecture. Inspired by a growing national interest in the use of classical 
designs and forms in architecture, the Neo-Classical Revival style was popularly employed in the 
designs of American residential architecture at the turn of the century. The return to classical forms 
was especially befitting to Atlanta, as classical styles evoked associations of the grand old Southern 
plantation homes that were a part of the South's heritage. The Zuber House is a two story white 
painted wood-frame house that manifests many of the characteristics of the Neo-Classical Revival 
Style. The house is a simple rectangular block fronted by a Greek Style portico with four Ionic 
columns. Round arched leaded glass windows flank the front doorway on either side. Above these 
windows on the second floor are stained glass port-hole windows. Although the facade of the 
building appears symmetrical at first glance, it is not. The sides of the house are treated differently 
to provide interesting character defining elements that add to the whole. The front porch is extended 
to wrap around the right side of the building. Also on this side is a projecting bay window. The left 
side of the house is treated as a flat surface to which is attached a porte cochere. The house is also 
decorated with carved brackets that support a second story projection over the front doorway.

On the interior are found many intact details. The front door opens into an imposing entrance to a 
large foyer. On the other end of the front hall, furniture is clustered around a fireplace for informal 
visiting, and built-in window seats are on each side of the front door. A large dining room with china 
molding and a bay window area suitable for afternoon tea is on the right side as you enter the front 
door. Adjacent to that is a breakfast room that leads into the kitchen area. Left of the front door is a 
parlor-type living room which opens into a den/library. The 3 large double sliding doors that connect 
the dining, living, and den areas emphasize the feeling of openness.

There are hardwood floors, a massive three-landing mahogany stairway and a stairwell opening into 
an area where there is a ceiling two floors high. There is a countryside mural alongside the stairway. 
A stained-glass sunburst is directly over the front door and there is a beveled glass window on each 
side of the front door. There are six other stained glass windows that can be seen from the hall area. 
There are two portholes of stained glass windows in two front closets on the second floor, which 
decorates the house at night from the outside. There is also a stained glass window in the bathroom 
as well as the old fashioned claw foot bathtub.

Being in the lumber business, the builder, John William Zuber, chose the best of materials and 
workmanship for his own home.
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The same heating is used that was used in 1906. The hot water radiators heat the entire house from 
a furnace in the basement. The ventilation is enhanced by transoms over all six doors on the second 
floor, and they are placed so that if there is any breeze from north, east, south or west, it will 
circulate throughout the entire floor. In the 90 year life of the home, all maintenance of the pipes and 
wiring and plumbing have been updated. Even though they have been maintained as need required, 
part of the systems are still the original.

In the front yard, there are six large old oak trees, two magnolia trees, two grape arbors, several 
pecan trees, and six Linden trees. They all lend to the authenticity of the history of the home. In the 
back yard are pecan trees and fruit trees.

There is no archaeological potential of the [original] 37 acres because in 1926 or 1928 the property 
was sold to several different buyers, and at the present time city streets cover all of the original 37 
acres, except the two-acre lot where the home is located.

The [present] two-acre lot is surrounded by streets on three sides. Behind the house is Palmer 
Street, bordering one side is Pasley Street, and the front of the house borders Flat Shoals Avenue. 
The other side has wooded property where a neighbor presently lives, who has lived there since the 
early 1920s. The front yard is fenced with a decorator's fence and the back yard is fenced in with a 
six-foot chain-link Cyclone fence. It also has a screen on the fence for privacy. The home being in 
the middle of the property gives it a lot of front-yard space and back-yard space.

Nothing has changed on the first floor or the second floor, and this was deliberate to preserve the 
architecture of the home. However, on the basement level a two-bedroom apartment with a bath and 
a living/cooking/dining area was built in the 1950s. This replaced a laundry unit. On the top floor 
where there was one large attic, this is now four rooms - three bedrooms and a large bathroom area. 
There is room in the basement for 2 more efficiency apartments.

ZUBER-JARRELL HOUSE 
DeKalb County, Georgia



8. Statement of Significance

Certifying official has considered the significance of this property in relation to other 
properties:

( ) nationally ( ) statewide (X) locally 

Applicable National Register Criteria: 

(X)A ()B (X)C ()D 

Criteria Considerations (Exceptions): (X) N/A

( )A OB oc OD OE OF OG

Areas of Significance (enter categories from instructions):

ARCHITECTURE 
COMMERCE

Period of Significance:

ca. 1906-1927

Significant Dates:

ca. 1906

Significant Person(s):

N/A

Cultural Affiliation:

N/A

Architect(s)/Builder(s):

Unknown
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Narrative statement of significance (areas of significance)

The Zuber-Jarrell House is significant in architecture because it is an extremely intact example of the 
Neo-Classical Revival style house from the turn of the century. It retains its form, columns, bracket 
detailing, front porch, portico, porte-cochere, and stained and other decorative glass work on the 
exterior, as well as the original wood, floors, doors, and spaces on the interior. It has an extremely 
unusual entrance stair hall with intact stair. It was obviously the work of a master architect, although 
the individual or firm has not yet been identified. The high quality of the materials used to build this 
house-especially the woodwork-and the craftsmanship reflect the fact that the house was built for a 
lumber baron with extensive resources.

The house is significant in commerce because the original owner-builder, John William Zuber (1867- 
1936), the son of German immigrants, ran an important wholesale lumber business while owner of 
this house. The Zuber firm owned timberlands in several southeastern states and had a town named 
Zuber, for the firm, in Florida, that survives as a placename today. It was from these vast holdings 
that he drew the timber he sold. The house reflects, no doubt, materials from his own company. He 
moved here with his bride shortly after their 1907 wedding. The property was originally a 37-area 
tract. The house reflected the high point of Mr. Zuber's professional life. He divided up the estate 
ca. 1926-1928, and he and his family left the house in 1927. The house went through several 
changes of owners until 1937 when it was purchased by John M. Jarrell. In 1954, he married Martha 
Frances Mitchell, the current owner. This house is the only known property in Georgia historically 
associated with John W. Zuber's lumber business and timbering, and it was built at the height of his 
career.

National Register Criteria

The Zuber-Jarrell House meets National Register Criterion A because it was the home of John W. 
Zuber, a major local figure in the wholesale lumber business. The building of this house reflected 
the high point of his career, both financially and socially. The house also meets National Register 
Criterion C because it is a fine, intact example of a Neo-Classical Revival Style house built ca. 1906 
at the peak of that movement and retains almost all of its original design, materials, details, room 
configuration, ornamentation, etc.

Criteria Considerations (if applicable)

N/A
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Period of significance (justification)

The period of significance runs from the completion of the house (ca. 1906) until the original owner 
and his family moved away and subdivided the property in 1927.

Contributing/Noncontributing Resources (explanation, if necessary)

There is only one resource, the main house, on the property and it is a contributing property. 

Developmental history/historic context (if appropriate)

The following narrative was prepared bv the applicant:

The location of the Zuber-Jarrell House, Flat Shoals Avenue, was formerly an old Indian trail and one 
of the oldest roads in this area. The house, known as "the big old white house" on Flat Shoals, has 
intrigued passers-by for 90 years. In the days when it did not have a number or a neighbor, everyone 
knew this site. It was reported that when the Zuber girls were shopping at Rich's the surprised clerk 
asked, "Don't you have a street number?" And the girls answered, "No, but he knows where we live." 
Since 1950 people have driven by at Christmas time to see the windows on the four floors lighted 
with all-white candles. A Jarrell daughter overheard a mother at PTA, "I just had to drive over here so 
I could see the old big white house all lit up."

This area played a permanent part in the Civil War, and just a few blocks down the street is where 
General McPherson was killed. There is a monument there to him. Also a neighborhood street is 
named for him, as well as Ft. McPherson. It was told that John Zuber, father of John William - the 
builder of the home - was a German immigrant, who enlisted in Buffalo, New York in August 22, 
1863, and was assigned to the first New York Light Artillery Regiment, Battery I. He came through 
there with Sherman's army. When he saw the destruction of Atlanta he vowed then that he wanted to 
come back and help rebuild the area that had been destroyed.

His dream was fulfilled by his son, John William. John Zuber came to Atlanta with his family in 1871. 
The property on Flat Shoals was bought in 1892 by John William Zuber, and construction of the 
home began shortly after the turn of the century. John William Zuber was a contributing citizen to this 
area with an office at Atlanta's Five Points. He bought timberlands in all the southeastern states, 
especially in the Carolinas, Alabama and in Florida. There is a town in Florida, between Ocala and 
Marion City, named Zuber after him. It is about nine miles north of Ocala. Although it is 
unincorporated now, it is still on the map. He was never in retail lumber business. He bought the 
timberlands and sold the lumber as trees. Much later his own son had a retail lumber company in 
Atlanta, The Zuber Lumber Company. At the age of 37, January 6, 1907 John William Zuber married

ZUBER-JARRELL HOUSE
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Gertie Rogers from Chattanooga, Tennessee and they came to this home as a bride and groom in 
1907. The Linden trees that line the drive were imported from Wales as a wedding gift to the bride. It 
was told that the blossoms made good tea. Zuber thought he had planted a half a dozen tea trees in 
this yard for his family, but when the family tried the tea, they didn't like it. But they enjoyed the 
blossoms that are so fragrant every spring for at least a month.

John William Zuber:

John William Zuber was born on May 10, 1867 in New York. He was the oldest child born to John 
Zuber and Margaret Wolff Zuber, who emigrated from Germany in the mid-1800s. Seeking a better 
life for their children, the Zubers moved to Atlanta when the young John William Zuber was four 
years old. Fulfilling dreams, John William Zuber became very successful in the wholesale lumber 
business, owning his own company, the J. W. Zuber Wholesale Lumber Company. At the age of 
thirty seven, Mr. Zuber married Gertie Rogers from Chattanooga, Tennessee. She was thirteen 
years younger than he. In anticipation of raising a family, Mr. Zuber built the house on Flat Shoals 
Road for his bride. They reportedly moved in after the wedding on January 5, 1907, and had their 
first child, William J. Zuber, approximately one year later. The Zubers had a second child named 
Jane in 1909, and then eight years later the couple had twin daughters named Elizabeth and 
Barbara. Having lived a full and prosperous life, John W. Zuber died on April 10, 1936.

The House:

Relying on information from DeKalb County Deed Records, research shows that Mr. Zuber began 
purchasing the land on which to build his house in 1892. Between this year and 1904, he acquired 
thirty-seven acres. There is no record of a building permit, however, the house was reportedly 
completed in 1906. It is also reported that the Zubers did not move in until after their marriage in 
1907. The family lived in the house until 1927.

Although today the Zuber House is located within the city limits of Atlanta, when the house was first 
built it was located in a very rural part of DeKalb County, south of the Atlanta city limits. Mrs. Daniels 
remembers that for many years the house had no street address other than Flat Shoals Road. The 
1924 Atlanta City Directory was the first year to list the Zuber's residence as 764 Flat Shoals Road. 
Prior to that time, the address was listed as Flat Shoals Road or just East Atlanta. The street 
address was then changed to its present address of 810 Flat Shoals Road in 1941.

Originally set on thirty-seven acres, the house today is situated on two acres of land, yet it retains its 
elegance and grandeur within its present orientation. The house is set back a good distance from 
Flat Shoals Road and is approached by an unpaved circular driveway. It is also sheltered from the
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main road by large trees that act to create an aura of a stately plantation home situated in an 
isolated rural area.

When first constructed, the Zuber House was quite secluded from any neighboring structures. On 
the Zubers' property was a small house for the servants that was located behind the main house. 
Mrs. Daniels remembers that her father owned some cows and a horse, which would suggest that 
there was a barn on the property at one time. Mr. Zuber also reportedly had a small garden in which 
he grew raspberries, strawberries, grapes, and other fruits. An unusual feature of the landscape 
that still exists are the linden trees that Mr. Zuber imported from Wales. Rumored that the blossoms 
could be used to make tea, Mr. Zuber found these trees especially interesting. Although the family 
only tested the tea on one occasion, the trees do contribute to the overall character of the property.

At some point during the Zubers' residence, Mr. Zuber reportedly gave part of his property to his 
wife's two sisters and their husbands on which they each constructed a home. Although neither the 
Atlanta City Directories nor the DeKalb County Deed Records offered any information on the dates of 
construction, or the dates of residence of the McCuen and Methzin families, the houses reportedly 
were located across Flat Shoals Road from the Zuber House.

As to the question, Why did the Zubers move from the property? Their daughter, Jane Zuber 
Daniels, recalls that although her father cultivated some of the acreage, he never planned to have a 
37-acre farm. He chose the colonial theme or style for his home, but he was more of a "Country 
Gentleman " farmer, and it seems the property was more of an investment. Mr. Zuber started selling 
portions of the property in 1926 to different buyers. In 1927, there was some confusion about space 
for his children in the community schools. When he saw advantages to living in the city for his family, 
he sold the house and farm in 1927.

The DeKalb County Deeds show that Mr. Zuber sold his property on Flat Shoals Road to several 
buyers between 1926-1928. The family reportedly moved from the house in 1927. The Atlanta City 
Directories list the new residents as Dr. and Mrs. Richard and Anna Nelson, who lived in the house 
until 1930. Between 1931-1940 a family by the name of Tumlin and a family by the name of Hardy 
lived here. There was a foreclosure of the property in 1937 when John Jarrell purchased it. This 
would indicate that the depression played a role in the transfer of the property. In 1937, when the 
house was purchased by John M. Jarrell, the Hardy family continued to rent from him until he moved 
here in the early 1940s with his sister, Sarah. In 1954 John Jarrell married Martha Frances Mitchell.

Mr. Jarrell was an engineer with the Southern Railway when he purchased the home in 1937. Later 
when he retired, Mr. Jarrell had completed forty-eight years service with the Southern Railway. When 
he was working in the fields as a boy at the Jarrell Plantation, now a state-owned historic site in 
Jones County, he would see and hear the trains as they passed alongside the river near Juliette.

ZUBER-JARRELL HOUSE
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There his dream of "driving the train" was born. John Jarrell and his brother Charlie were both 
engineers with Southern. Each had their own train whistle signal - a variation of "shave and a 
haircut- two bits". Each would always blow their signal when they "got even" with their home place 
so their Mother could know: "There goes Johnny. There goes Charlie. It's time for Johnny's schedule 
to return, etc..."

John and Martha Frances Jarrell raised six children in the house, including two sets of twins. Mrs. 
Jarrell and several of the children still reside in the home today.

The Community of East Atlanta:

The Zuber House is located in the East Atlanta section of Atlanta. Originally a sparsely populated 
farm community on the outskirts of the Atlanta city limits, East Atlanta was annexed to the city of 
Atlanta on January 1,1909. This created the new ninth ward. Once annexed, the area began to 
develop into a thriving commercial and residential area. Prior to this development, there was one 
general store on the north corner of Glenwood Avenue and Flat Shoals Road. This store, J. W. 
McWilliams and Son General Merchandise, was opened in 1889 and served as a trading center and 
post office for the community for many years.

At the turn of the century, the Metropolitan Street Railway Company began service to the area linking 
it to other parts of the city. The rail-line, which reportedly ran north-south along Moreland Avenue to 
Glenwood Avenue, helped to stimulate the development of the East Atlanta Business District, located 
at the intersection of Glenwood Avenue and Flat Shoals Road. The Atlanta City Directories show 
that commercial development began approximately in 1910 with the construction of the East Atlanta 
Bank Building, and increased every year. By 1920, the business district included such shops as 
W.B. Owens Meats, McWilliams and Son General Merchandise, Marbut and Minor Grocery, the East 
Atlanta Bank, W. W. Woodcock Barbershop, B.T. Maynard Shoe Repair, and V. W. Thompson 
Florist. The development of East Atlanta as a residential community paralleled that of the 
commercial district. Today one finds traces of homes from the Victorian Era through the 1960s.

The 1960s was a decade of change for the community. With the construction of Interstate 20, Flat 
Shoals Road was terminated just north of the East Atlanta Business District, cutting off the area from 
easy access to all points north. Business reportedly declined, crime increased, and the area's racial 
mix changed from predominately white to black.

In I984 a neighborhood revitalization effort was begun by the East Atlanta Merchants Association 
and the East Atlanta Neighborhood Association. While the area has certainly experienced a 
comeback, proponents for revitalization continue to work towards attracting more business to the 
district.

ZUBER-JARRELL HOUSE
DeKalb County, Georgia 1 \
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( ) Other, Specify Repository:

Georgia Historic Resources Survey Number (if assigned):
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10. Geographical Data

Acreage of Property 2 acres 

UTM References

A) Zone 16 Easting 746640 Northing 3735680 

Verbal Boundary Description

The nominated property is marked on the enclosed tax map. 

Boundary Justification

The nominated property is all that remains associated with the house and all that the current owner 
owns at this location. Property formerly associated with the house was subdivided and developed for 
residential use outside the historic property's period of significance.

11. Form Prepared By_________________________________________ 

State Historic Preservation Office

name/title Kenneth H. Thomas, Jr., Historian
organization Historic Preservation Division, Georgia Department of Natural Resources
street & number 500 The Healey Building, 57 Forsyth Street
city or town Atlanta state Georgia zip code 30303
telephone (404)656-2840 date August 11,1997

Consulting Services/Technical Assistance (if applicable) ( ) not applicable

name/title Martha F. Mitchell Jarrell 
organization N/A
street and number 810 Flat Shoals Ave. SE 
city or town Atlanta state GA zip code 30316 
telephone (404) 627-9701

() consultant
() regional development center preservation planner
(X) other: owner, along with other family members, prepared the nomination

(HPD form version 02-24-97)
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Photographs

Name of Property: Zuber-Jarrell House
City or Vicinity: Atlanta
County: DeKalb
State: Georgia
Photographer: James R. Lockhart
Negative Filed: Georgia Department of Natural Resources
Date Photographed: March, 1997

Description of Photograph(s):

1 of 12 Front facade; photographer facing northeast.

2 of 12 Front facade; photographer facing north.

3 of 12 Rear ell; photographer facing west.

4 of 12 Rear ell; photographer facing southwest.

5 of 12 First floor, interior, entrance foyer/stair hall; photographer facing northeast.

6 of 12 First floor, interior, stairway, entrance foyer/stair hall; photographer facing northeast.

7 of 12 First floor, front entrance; photographer facing southwest.

8 of 12 First floor, dining room; photographer facing southeast.

9 of 12 First floor, library; photographer facing northwest.

10 of 12 Second floor, sitting area at top of stair looking into master bedroom; photographer facing 
southeast.

11 of 12 Second floor, bathroom off master bedroom; photographer facing east.

12 of 12 Second floor, bedroom above the parlor; photographer facing east.
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Zuber-Jarrell House
Atlanta, DeKalb County, Georgia
Tax Map
Scale: 1" = 150'
Source: DeKalb County Tax Assessor's Office

Date: 1993
Key: The nominated property is parcel 32 and is 

marked by a heavy black line. <
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Atlanta, DeKalb County, Georgia 
Floor Plan: First Floor 
Scale: Marked on the plan. 
Source: Legate and Associates 
Date: 1993
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Zuber-Jarrell House 
Atlanta, DeKalb County, Georgia 
Floor Plan: Second Floor 
Scale: Marked on the plan. 
Source: Legate and Associates 
Date: 1993


